Public Document Pack

Meeting
Date:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

Time:

6.30 pm to 8.30 pm

Location:

Via Microsoft Teams
AGENDA

1.

Welcome and Meeting Protocols

2.

Feedback from meeting of 17 November 2020 (Pages 3 - 6)
Copy of Minute attached.

3.

Fit for 2024: Review of Area Partnerships & Community Fund and action for Teviot &
Liddesdale Area Partnership
Recommendation proposed from Teviot and Liddesdale Area Partnership to be considered
for public consultation. (To follow).

4.

Teviot and Liddesdale Community Fund 2020/21 (Pages 7 - 12)
One application for approval:

(a)

Hobkirk Community Council

(Assessment attached plus Teviot and Liddesdale funding information).
5.

Community Fund Project Evaluations
One evaluation for consideration:

(a)

Alchemy Film and Arts.

(To follow).
6.

Other Information and news for noting (Pages 13 - 22)
a.

The Teviot & Liddesdale Community Fund for 2020/21 is open - guidance and
application form is on SBC website:
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20076/community_grants_and_funding/261/co
mmunity_fund

b.

Teviot & Liddesdale Locality Plan & Action Plans - these plans are now published
and outline the priorities of the Teviot & Liddesdale area and could be the focus of a
future Area Partnership meeting:
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/7595/teviot_and_liddesdale_locality_
plan

c.

Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 – Currently, there are no formal
Participation Requests and no formal Asset Transfer requests being considered
within Teviot & Liddesdale. Further information can be found here:
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20062/strategies_plans_and_policies/357/com
munity_empowerment_scotland_act_2015

d.

Fit for 2020 (report attached) outlining proposals for community engagement

over future service delivery.
7.

Date of Next Teviot and Liddesdale Area Partnership - 12 March 2021
Are there any items you would like to propose for the agenda? (Please contact your local
councillor, Elected Member or the Communities and Partnership Team).

8.

Any other formal business

9.

Open Forum

Please direct any enquiries to Judith Turnbull Tel. No. 01835 826556
Email: Judith.Turnbull@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
TEVIOT AND LIDDESDALE AREA PARTNERSHIP
MINUTE of Meeting of the TEVIOT AND
LIDDESDALE AREA PARTNERSHIP held
via Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, 17
November 2020 at 6.30 pm

Present:-

Councillors N Richards (Chairman), S Marshall, W McAteer, D Paterson, C
Ramage, G Turnbull.
21 representatives of partner organisations, Community Councils, and
members of the public

In attendance:-

Service Director Neighbourhood Services, Communities and Partnerships
Manager, Locality Development Co-ordinator (G Jardine) , Democratic
Services Officer (J Turnbull).

1.

WELCOME AND MEETING PROTOCOLS
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Teviot and Liddesdale Area
Partnership held remotely via Microsoft Teams, which included Elected Members, guests
attending within the meeting and those watching via the Live Stream. He outlined how the
meeting would be conducted.

2.

FEEDBACK FROM MEETING OF 18 FEBRUARY 2020
The Minute of the meeting of the Teviot and Liddesdale Area Partnership held on 18
February 2020 had been circulated and was noted. With reference to paragraph 2.2 of the
Minute relating to Storm Dennis, Newcastleton Community Council asked that it be
acknowledged that although the flood warning was received at 1625 hrs, it had been 1745
hrs before Newcastleton received any assistance and this had placed their local fire
service at risk.

3.
3.1

OTHER INFORMATION AND NEWS FOR NOTING
The Chairman, Councillor Richards, advised that outstanding Community Fund
applications for 2019/20 had been dealt with as per the report to Council on 27 August
2020. The report also included the evaluation of the Localities Bid Fund 1 and 2 and
Participatory Budgeting. The Teviot and Liddesdale Community Fund for 2020/21 was
now open, guidance and an application form was available on the Council’s website.
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20076/community_grants_and_funding/261/communi
ty_fund

3.2

Councillor Richards also advised that Community Council grants would be paid as normal
for 2020/21 as would grants to the Federation of Village Halls Festival Grant Scheme
commitments regarding public liability and insurance were also being met for 2020.
Under the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015, there had been no formal
Participation Requests or formal Asset Transfer requests being considered within Teviot
and Liddesdale. Councillor Richards went on to advise that the Teviot and Liddesdale
Locality Plan and Action Plans had been published on the Council’s website:
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/download/1310/locality_plans

3.3

In response to a question, the Communities and Partnership Manager, Shona Smith,
Communities and Partnerships Manager, advised that Federation of Village Hall grants

Page 3

had been processed; Community Council grants were being paid as documentation was
received and checked. It was advised that the Participatory Budget Charter had been
published and is accessible here: https://pbscotland.scot/charter. The Charter is about
wider involvement in spend at local level.
4.
4.1

4.2

FIT FOR 2024: REVIEW OF AREA PARTNERSHIPS & COMMUNITY FUND AND
ACTION FOR TEVIOT & LIDDESDALE AREA PARTNERSHIP
A summary of reports to Council on 27 August 2020, on the Review of Area Partnerships
and the Community Fund, had been circulated with the agenda. Jenni Craig, Service
Director, Customer and Communities, gave a presentation highlighting the key areas from
the summary document. She advised that following the review and report to Council by
the Scottish Community Development Centre (SCDS), the Council agreed that a further
report be presented to them for consideration in March 2021. This report will reflect the
opinions and ideas of Area Partnerships and communities on how the Area Partnerships
and Community Fund should evolve. Mrs Craig advised that Area Partnerships had yet
to realise the level of community engagement and involvement that was envisaged when
they were established. That Community Councils and community groups should be
involved in shaping how their Area Partnership should develop going forward. It was
therefore anticipated that each locality should develop recommendations which reflected
their own localities’ circumstances. These recommendations would then go forward for
further public consultation in February 2021. At the end of the public consultation, a
report would be considered by Council in March 2021. Mrs Craig advised that in some
localities there was not enough community capacity to sustain local activity and that the
Council were considering a model for communities going forward. Mrs Craig went on to
explain that the SCDS review had also reviewed Community Fund arrangements.
Findings were that most found the application process and criteria positive but that
improved transparency was required about the decision making process and the grants
available. It was also the preference for Village Hall, Community Council and Festival
grants to remain ring fenced. Mrs Craig then asked for views about how the Area
Partnerships could be developed going forward, acknowledging that this might be different
within each of the localities.
The Chairman referred to the suggested questions included in the paper circulated as an
aid to stimulate discussion on how Area Partnerships should operate, how they should be
constituted and what their focus should be. A discussion followed and the following points
were raised:













Covid-19 communications have been helpful and Community Assistance Hubs
should be retained.
Local authority resources provided at local level to continue.
Communications on Covid-19 testing, vaccinations etc. could be advised at
meetings.
Balance Hawick town and rural priorities.
Community Councils worked well together in relation to Pines Burn funding, a
similar model could work for Area Partnerships.
Chair to be appointed within the new committee, not imposed by Council. Could
rotate Chair annually
Representation - eight Community Councillors and six elected Members.
Learnings to be used from Newcastleton Community Trust which had been set up to
manage community funding.
Equal number of community councillors and elected Members, community
organisations also to be involved.
Sub-Group to stand separately from the Council.
Elected Members and Community Council know what is required in their areas.
Engagement at local level required – involve other representatives from community
organisations.
Council officers’ experience and support to be retained.

Page 4





4.3

Newcastleton paper to be discussed at the next Community Council network
meeting and comments fed back.
Community Council review needs to be progressed.
Area Partnership’s role to be established to empower communities and use budget
at local levels. This needs to be agreed before setting up a new structure.
Base on scheme for Pines Burn plus Councillors. Newcastleton will share paper
with SBC.

Following the discussion it was suggested that officers should pull together points from
the responses and comments from other Area Partnerships.

5.
5.1

TEVIOT & LIDDESDALE COMMUNITY FUND 2020/21
Assessments of three applications to the Teviot and Liddesdale Community Fund had
been circulated, plus a summary of grant funding for Teviot and Liddesdale in 2020/21
and the source of that funding. The summary showed grant applications awarded, those
under assessment and those to be considered by the Area Partnership. Gillian Jardine,
Locality Development Co-ordinator, outlined the process of assessment of applications to
the Community Fund and the criteria used for that assessment. She advised that
applications to the Community Fund would be put forward to the Area Partnership for
consideration based on the assessment and whether the criteria had been met. Ms
Jardine advised that since the agenda pack had been published, a grant to Hawick Rugby
Memories had been approved to the value of £1,467.00. Two other fast track applications
were being assessed together with the three applications for consideration this evening.
Ms Jardine explained that the total requests amounted to £29,264 which meant that the
funding pot was oversubscribed by £6,401. It was therefore agreed that because of this
shortfall, the decision on allocation of funding would follow consideration of all three
applications.

5.2

Saturday Polish School Hawick
The first application for consideration was from the Saturday Polish School Hawick
(SPHS) who were seeking funding of £7,425 to enable the SPSH to continue to operate
for the 2020/21 school year despite the loss in revenue due to reduced pupil numbers.
The grant would be used to cover the cost of teaching staff, additional teaching support
for student and admin/management costs. Since the start of lockdown classes had been
provided virtually. During this time student numbers had decreased by 40% which had a
knock-on effect on income raised by parental fees. A representative from the Polish
School was in attendance and in response to a question advised that Brexit had caused a
small part in the reduction in numbers attending the school, with some families returning
to Poland. The main reason for the reduction was because of Covid-19 restrictions.
Classes were currently held online and parents of younger children, particularly those 3 to
6 years of age, preferred attending classes in school. The work of the Saturday Polish
School Hawick was commended by those in attendance at the meeting.

5.3

Hawick Community Pump Track
An application for a grant of £9,757.35 had been received from the organisation Hawick
Community Pump Track. The grant would be used for the purchase of five year floodlight
inspection and maintenance, electronic footfall counter, defibrillator and purchase and
installation of eight picnic benches. The organisation had been planning to introduce Club
membership but because of Covid-19 this was currently on hold. A representative from
the Hawick Community Pump Track was in attendance and advised that the track
attracted people from out with the area and they hoped to build on this when Covid-19
restrictions allowed. In response to a question he advised that the five year maintenance
grant was part of the planning agreement for use of the floodlights. They had raised
funding for all of the costs associated with running the floodlights for this year and next.
Those present commended the work of the Hawick Community Pump Track organisation.

5.4

Strawberry Lemonade Events

Page 5

The final application for consideration was from Strawberry Lemonade Events who had
requested £9,500 to pay for a Project Manager and Project Co-ordinator with the aim to
run a training programme called Event Management Fundamentals for those facing social
exclusion. The funding would also be used to support additional training course materials
including venue hire, training courses, supplies, printing and uniforms. Ms Jardine
advised the assessment had shown difficulty in identifying need as there were other
services offering employability support in the Hawick area. A representative from
Strawberry Lemonade Events was in attendance and in answer to questions explained
that they were originally from Edinburgh but were rolling out the programme nationally,
this was an opportunity to bring the programme to Hawick. They identified people to join
the programme by reaching out to organisations and partnerships. The sessions involved
were two hours and covered fundamental course work and introduced skills such as
budgeting in an accessible way. The aim of the project was to get people into jobs, by
giving them experience, teaching transferable skill, helping with CVs and arranging paid
work experience placements. Third sector organisations and partnerships provided
referrals. Covid-19 had meant that they had managed other opportunities such as food
and clothing deliveries which had given access to third party organisations. They were
also working with Asda and a haulage company. Strawberry Lemonade Events were a
company limited by guarantee and a not for profit organisation.
5.5

Following consideration of all three applications, the Area Partnership unanimously
approved grant funding of £7,425.00 to the Saturday Polish School Hawick and £9,757.35
to Hawick Community Pump Track. The Strawberry Events Lemonade application was to
be deferred until next year when the Covid-19 situation had hopefully improved. The
Chairman thanked all three applicants for their attendance at the meeting.
(Note: Following the meeting Ms Jardine contacted Strawberry Lemonade Events to
suggest they link in with SBC’s Learning Community Partnership. This would be an
opportunity for the organisation to make connections with DWP, Activity Agreements etc
to develop a further funding application in the future).

6.

DATE OF NEXT TEVIOT AND LIDDESDALE AREA PARTNERSHIP - 12 JANUARY
2021
The next meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, 12 January 2021. Suggestions for agenda
items could be sent to the Locality Development co-ordinator at
gillian.jardine@scotborders.gov.uk

7.

ANY OTHER FORMAL BUSINESS
No items were raised.

8.

OPEN FORUM
On behalf of Southdean, Mr Kerr raised a concern about lack of engagement with
vulnerable residents to advise of power outages. Recently there had been three separate
Scottish Power outages at Southdean. Calls from Keltbray, the contractor, advising of the
outage had been from an unidentified number which many older residents might not
answer. It was requested that power companies liaise with the Council, to identify
vulnerable residents in communities who could then be contacted and receive appropriate
support. Ms Smith advised that utility companies currently did not liaise with SBC and
asked that communities contact the Council when they were aware of any proposed
outages if they had concerns. Mrs Elborn advised that Newcastleton had also recently
had an unannounced power cut which had resulted in their fuel court being unavailable for
three days.
CHAIRMAN
The Chairman thanked everyone for their attendance and closed the meeting.

The meeting concluded at 8.20 pm.

Page 6

Agenda Item 4

2020/2021 Community Fund:
Interim Assessment Form
Locality: Teviot & Liddesdale
Ref. No.: CF2021-T&L-5
Organisation Name: Hobkirk Community Council
Funding Requested: £3,064.34
ABOUT THE GROUP
Organisation Structure

Community Council

Annual Accounts Balance

£2697.91

Are any funds ring-fenced, if so why & how much?

Has the applicant successfully applied for SBC funding within the last three years?
Yes

No

SBC Funds received

Financial Year

Amount (£)

What used for?

Community Fund

2019/20

1,352

New noticeboard

Community Grant Scheme

2018/19

£330

Scarecrow Festival

Community Council grant
Have they recently applied to the Common Good Fund?
Yes
No

ABOUT THE PROJECT
Project brief

Hobkirk Community Council would like to plant shrubs at
Bonchester’s War Memorial and Village Hall to add colour
and interest to the village.
The Community Fund would be used to purchase shrubs,
trees, compost and materials.

Project Start Date: DD/MM/YY

March/April 2021

Total Expenditure (£)

£3,404.82

Community Fund Request (£)

£3,064.34

10% organisation contribution

£340.48

Page 7

Any Other Contribution?
Other Funding Sources

Amount (£)

At what stage?

Communities have more access to better quality local services or activities

Community
Fund
Outcomes

Communities have more access to a better quality environment
Communities have more pride in their community
Communities have more access to better quality advice and information
More local groups or services are better supported to recover from financial
difficulty

Teviot &
Liddesdale
Action Plan
priorities

The project meets the following priorities:


Encourage people to look after their local area and take pride in where they
live

ASSESSMENT
What need/demand has been
evidenced for this
project/activity?
What benefits will be gained
from the project/activity and
how well does the
project/activity meet the
outcomes of the scheme?
What support and involvement
of the wider community is
there for this project/activity?
What efforts have been made
by the applicant to secure
other sources of funding for
the project/activity?
How will the impact and
success of the project be
measured? What happens at
the end of the project/activity
or when the funding is spent?
Quotes received for items of
expenditure

Hobkirk Community Council members would like to brighten
up the village by planting shrubbery in locations which are
looking neglected. The intention is to help make the village
look vibrant and appeal to visitors travelling in the area.
Shrubs are cost effective and low maintenance compared to
bedding plants. This will assist the small team of village
volunteers who will be responsible for taking care of the
shrubs. Shrubs also provide all year round colour which will
add to the appearance of the village. The Council believe it
could encourage additional community projects of a similar
nature.
The idea for a planting programme is fully supported by the
Village Hall committee as well as other residents in the
village.

The pruning and maintenance of the shrubs will be
undertaken by volunteers in the community and will be
overseen by the vice Chair of Hobkirk Community Manage
who has experience of planting programmes.

Yes

Page 8

Have appropriate permissions
been sought/granted?

Yes

SBC OFFICER ASSESSMENT
The application meets the criteria of the Community Fund.
Additional Terms and Conditions:
Scottish Government coronavirus (COVID-19) guidance must be adhered to with a protocol
for safe participation in the programme and use of resources developed, and all participants
agreeing to adhere to this protocol.
We would seek the group to particularly report on:





Photos of the planting programme as it develops and the final result
Number of volutneers involved
Feedback from residents / visitors
Any follow on projects

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Teviot & Liddesdale Funding 2020/21- 12th January 2020
No.

Teviot & Liddesdale Community Fund 2020/21
£
Opening balance as at 1st September 2020
(£143k split per head of population)
Plus split of £251k (per head of population)

Total now available:

24,334

1

42,503

2

66,837

3
4

Less :
Insurance for Festivals (already awarded)
Community Fund & Community Fund Fast Track
applications awarded since 01 09 20

Page 11

Community Fund & Community Fund Fast Track
applications that are assessed and await decision
Total of the above
If the above assessed applications were fully funded
– balance available going forward to

0

5

Date rec

Applications

Overall position

£7,425

Awarded

£1,467

Rugby Recordings

Awarded

Equipment

Awarded

Christmas event

Awarded

Fencing equipment

Awarded

Saturday Polish School

28/09/2020

Hawick Rugby Memories

02/10/2020

Hawick Community Pump Track

05/10/2020

Burnfoot Community Futures

06/10/2020

The Borders Green Team

08/10/2020

Strawberry Lemonade Events

£9,500

10/12/2020

Hobkirk Community Council

£3,064.34

Total

£24,295.74

£9,757.35
£1,500
£1,082.05

21,231.40

6

Status

Project
Teaching and resource
costs

15/09/2020

Salaries / equipment
for training programme

Unsuccessful

3,064.34

24,295.34

42,541.66

7

Shrubs for village

Assessed

To be assessed and brought to a future Area Partnership:
Hawick Recreation Association

Community Fund & Community Fund Fast Track
applications still to be assessed and brought to a
future Teviot & Liddesdale Area Partnership

Amount £

7,374

Heating system

Pending

7,374
35,167.66

Teviot and Liddesdale - other sources of grant funding
Grant type
SBC Small Schemes
Common Good, Hawick
SBC Enhancement Grant
SBC Welfare Grant

Available
£34,702.00
£51,250.00
£1,171.94
£1,223.48

Awarded
£22,111.00
£16,233.00
£0.00
£0.00

Remaining
£12,591.00
£35,017.00
£1,171.94
£1,223.48

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

FIT FOR 2024 – OUTLINE PROPOSALS FOR COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT OVER FUTURE SERVICE DELIVERY
Report by Service Director Human Resources

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
17 December 2020

1

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1

The Council recognises the need to reshape the model of public service
delivery in the Borders to improve the quality of life for its citizens,
stimulate economic growth and minimise our environmental impact.
The Council is investing heavily in new facilities and new ways of
working which will have an impact on the Council’s existing extensive
property footprint over the next few years. The opportunities provided
by new technology, the experience of service delivery during Covid-19
and the need to ensure the Council’s extensive estate is sustainable,
provides a compelling justification of the need to modernise public
service delivery and ensure our property estate is fit for purpose.
This report outlines:





The continuing significant investment that the Council is making in
the modernisation of its services and its estate.
The need for engagement with communities to look at how these
investments can be sustained through alternative models of service
delivery.
The pressing need to look at how limited financial resources can be
prioritised to continue to support these developments.

It is proposed that a further report is brought to Council in February
2021 setting out detailed proposals for a programme of community
engagement over the next year to review priorities for service provision
and associated investment, ongoing funding and support. It is proposed
that the review would take a locality “Place-Making” approach which will
fully engage with communities drawing on the principles of Community
Empowerment legislation and seeking the participation of communities
in the redesign of future public services in the Borders. It would involve
key partner organisations including Area Partnerships, Community
Councils, Live Borders, Police Scotland, local Registered Social
Landlords, NHS Borders and communities themselves to ensure the
most effective and sustainable models of service delivery are developed.

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 13

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that Council:a)

Note the continuing investment in services and the Council’s
extensive estate;

b)

Agree the need to review the prioritisation of associated
investment and resources to ensure future models of public
service delivery in the Borders continue to meet the needs of local
people in the most effective and sustainable way;

c)

Reaffirm the need to examine new service delivery models as set
out in the Fit for 2024 strategy, which improve the Council’s
carbon footprint, make better use of technology and deliver
savings.

d)

Agree the need to involve Community Planning Partners, Area
Partnerships, Community Councils and communities in the future
design of public services; and

e)

Request that, a further report be brought to Council in February
2021 setting out the details of an estate-wide, community
engagement-led review of services which will be undertaken in
phases; and

f)

Agree, that in anticipation of the report to Council in February, a
report on the Learning Estate be brought to January Council.

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 14

3

BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT
Fit for 2024 – The Council’s Transformation Programme
3.1 In February 2019 the Council agreed it’s Fit for 2024 Transformation
programme which made commitments in terms of:





Service by service reviews
Investment in well planned and designed digital solutions
Making best use of our physical assets
Enhanced community engagement and participation

The February 2019 Council report recognised that delivering both the
improvements and the savings identified in the report will be a challenging
and exacting exercise. Fit for 2024 aims to ensure that the Council is
capable of meeting the challenges it faces and optimise outcomes for
citizens and communities. It is probably a fair assessment to suggest that,
since February 2019, the outlook is now even more challenging given the
increased scale of savings which the Council needs to achieve (as set out in
the current Financial Plan) and the continuing impact of the pandemic.
3.2

Service Reviews and Investment in Digital Services
The February 2019 Fit for 2024 report recognised that digital investment is
an enabler for change but will require a shift from traditional ways of doing
things so that benefits around customer choice and convenience, service
improvements and financial benefits can be fully realised.

3.3

The 2020/21-24/25 Financial Plan identifies recurring savings of £1.2m
relating to process improvements and changes to service models,
particularly in the areas of Business Support and Customer Services, as a
result of the investment in digital services and an associated move away
from traditional models.

3.4

Over the last 4 years the Council has invested over £14.3m in the
development and implementation of digital services. A further £34m of
expenditure has been agreed with CGI over the next 4 years. This
investment is aligned with the Council’s Customer Services Strategy 2018 –
2023 and the Digital by Design approach. The investment both anticipates
and reflects the progressive and accelerating shift in demand toward online
digital and telephone-based services and the corresponding decline in the
demand for traditional face-to-face service delivery. It also recognises the
opportunities that digital technologies provide in improving access to
information and services – including equality of access for people who live
out-with our main towns and/or who have less access to traditional
buildings-based services.

3.5

Investment in digital services is across the whole spectrum of Council
activity from the provision of iPads for school pupils (see 3.9 below) to
improving connectivity in care homes to enable video communications
between residents and their families and from online and telephone services
such as making payments, ordering services and reporting faults to
supporting mobile and remote working and improving integrated working
with partner organisations.

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 15

3.6

Changes in technology provide increasing opportunities to provide front-line
customer services in a more mobile and flexible way which is not dependent
on existing face-to-face formats in fixed locations.

3.7

The experience of the pandemic and lock-down has shown that with many
traditional forms of building-based services unable to open, that digital and
telephone-based services have enabled the Council to continue to provide
essential services and improve collaborative working with partner
organisations and community-based groups. This clearly shows the
continued improvement in digital connectivity and continued increase in use
of digital and telephone services across all sectors of society. It is
recognised, however, that not all services can be delivered in a digital way.
Continuing to provide face-to-face services particularly for the more
vulnerable in society and those who, for whatever reason, cannot access
online services will remain necessary.

3.8

Recent initiatives including Inspire Learning and Connecting Scotland have
seen an increasing proportion of the population able to access services
digitally. It is recognised that this trend is growing over time. The Council
has had no requests from the public to access Customer Services on a faceto-face basis. All such transactions have been undertaken on line, by mail
or by telephone since March 2020. This move away from personal face-toface contact will be require to be fully reflected in future models of public
service delivery.

Investment in the Learning Estate
3.9 The Inspire Learning Programme has already seen and £3.5m investment as
part of an overall £16m investment in the provision of iPads to pupils. This
ground-breaking programme is transforming teaching and learning across
the Borders for the benefit of all teachers and pupils. The programme is
aimed at raising attainment and will ensure that pupils develop a level of
general and specialist digital skills that are vital for learning, life and work in
an increasingly digital world.
3.10 Since 2015/16, and including current year projected spend, the Council has
invested just under £60m in the Learning Estate including replacing end of
life buildings with new, state-of the-art flexible and fit-for-purpose buildings.
Over the next 25 years, the Council will contribute £12.7m towards a joint
£31.1m investment in the Jedburgh Grammar Campus. Over the next 9
years, the Council plans to invest a further £171m in the Learning Estate
including the replacement of Earlston Primary School, Gala Academy,
Peebles High School and Hawick High School. A consultation with regard to
the future provision of primary education in Eyemouth is currently
underway.
3.11 Increasingly these investments are about more than simply replacing old
with new. Instead, these buildings are intended to be flexible, multipurpose community assets which provide unique opportunities to rethink
how our services are provided in each town and locality.

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 16

Investments in the Social Care
3.12 With an ageing population there is an increasing demand for suitable
buildings-based support including extra care housing and residential care.
This increased demand is coming at a time where our five residential care
homes – built in the 60s, 70s and 80s – are nearing the end of their useful
lives. There is a need for the Council and its partners to make a significant
investment in this area of the estate. £25.2m is already included in the
capital programme including the creation of 120 new residential care beds at
Stirches in Hawick and in the Central Borders as well as Extra Care Housing
(ECH). ECH developments in Galashiels and Duns are well advanced with a
further development in Kelso on the site of the former High School also
progressing. Further plans for investment are being developed for Council
in the new year. Expansion in care services will require a corresponding
increase in the operational budgets to support this.
Environmental Sustainability
3.13 The Council has recently made challenging commitments to reduce
greenhouse gases to net zero by 2045 at the latest in line with national
targets. Our current estate, in terms of both its size and its condition (see
3.16 below) mitigates against the achievement of these targets. As one of
the most significant sources of emissions, reducing the size and improving
the quality of the estate is a key area where action can be taken to reduce
our carbon footprint.
Financial Sustainability
3.14 The significant investment in modernising our services and estate need to
be viewed in the context of continuing financial constraints which require
the Council to reduce its operating costs by £30m/year by 2024/25 as set
out in the 2020/21–2024/25 Financial Plan. The Financial Plan also
identifies potential estate savings of just under £700k/year by 24/25 and a
further £1.2m in the same period in service savings where there is a
reduced dependency on traditional buildings-based models of service. In
large part, these savings were anticipated as part of an expected return on
investment in both digital technologies (with the move to more efficient
digital provision of services) and the investment in the estate (through
better, more flexible use of buildings).
Impact on the Estate
3.15 The February 2019 Fit for 2024 report, under the theme Making Best Use of
our Physical Assets recognised the need to work with partners and
communities to rethink and reshape our collective property portfolio to
ensure that it:





meets current and future needs of service users, communities and
service providers;
maximises and make best use of investment opportunities of both
existing revenue and capital resources as well as external funding
opportunities; and
is sustainable and affordable in terms of both ongoing funding and
energy efficiency

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 17

3.16 The Council has over 260 buildings – many are legacy buildings inherited
from local government reorganisation in 1996. These buildings cover
9million m2 of internal floor space (equivalent to 1,203 rugby pitches). Of
these buildings, only 77% are classed as good or satisfactory with most or
the remaining 23% classed as poor (Showing major defect and/or not
operating adequately).
3.17 On average, the Council spends £14m/year on maintaining and running the
estate (£16.3m in 2019/20). However, the sheer size, complexity, age and
condition of the estate mean that these resources are spread too thinly and
the backlog of maintenance works (currently standing at over £23m)
continues to grow.
3.18 The continuing investment in new and modern buildings adds to our
extensive estate and, in turn, increases operational costs. Without changes
to the way we use the estate we will be unable to achieve the associated
programmed savings as set out in the Financial Plan. As a result there is a
compelling case for reviewing our estate and priorities for funding over the
next 5 years and beyond to support both our investment in the estate and in
new digital models of service.
4.

PROPOSED NEXT STEPS
4.1

This report proposes a programme of engagement with communities to
review priorities for service provision and associated investment, ongoing
funding and support. It is proposed that the review would take a locality
“Place-Making” approach which will fully engage with communities drawing
on the principles of Community Empowerment legislation and seeking the
participation of communities in the redesign of future public services in the
Borders. It would involve key partner organisations including Area
Partnerships, Community Councils, Live Borders, Police Scotland, local
Registered Social Landlords, NHS Borders and communities themselves to
ensure the most effective and sustainable models of service delivery are
developed.

4.2

The purpose of the review would be to consider the models of future service
delivery in each town across a range of Council-funded services and taking a
whole-town approach which matches needs and demand for services to
current and planned provision. The outcome would be a set of options and
recommendations for Council.

4.3

It is proposed that, to inform the review, service profiles would be
developed through a series of reports each focusing on a key service area.
These profiles would include national and local policies and strategies as well
as available metrics around demand, satisfaction, performance (including
trends) investment and operational costs. Similarly, profiles for related
properties will be produced for the review based on available information on
size, condition, title, listed building status, operational costs and usage.

4.4

It is further proposed that the following criteria are applied in the review to
each property:
 Fitness For Purpose (suitability including fit with operational
requirements)

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 18

 Performance/Demand (current and trend and potential for improvement)
 Access to Reasonable Alternatives (including duplication/competition)
 Equality of Access (both physical accessibility and also ensuring services
are available across all localities)
 Economic Impact (actual and potential value to the local economy)
 Environmental/Carbon Impact (including energy efficiency)
 Condition (including backlog and foreseeable maintenance)
 Scope/suitability for alternative use (potential CAT, marketability,
constraints and community views for alternative use)
 Town Scoping - to get a complete picture of what services are available in
each of our communities

5.

4.5

Further details of this proposed Place-Making approach will be developed
and brought to February Council recognising that related activity is already
taking place in a number of communities (e.g. community consultation
around Eyemouth Primary School and proposals for the replacement of
Galashiels Academy). This work will continue as Place-Making engagement
proposals are developed in detail.

4.6

It is anticipated the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal will be finalised in
early 2021. The Deal includes a “Place Programme”. This programme is
designed to provide investment to stimulate the repurposing and reinvention
of towns and town centres across the Borderlands area. The review outlined
in this report is a prerequisite to developing the necessary business cases on
which to make investment decisions in the use of the funds available.

4.7

To help inform the review it is proposed that a series of reports on the main
categories are brought forward to Council early in the new year beginning
with a report on the Learning Estate to January Council.

IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Financial
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the
report proposes a forward strategy for future service redesign. The consequences
of this strategy will be far-reaching and will need to be addressed as part of the
revenue and capital financial planning process.
The 2020/21 Financial Plan identified anticipated estate savings of just under
£700k/year by 2024/25 and a further £1.2m in the same period in service savings
where there is a reduced dependency on traditional buildings-based models of
service. In large part, these savings were anticipated as a result of both
investment in digital technologies (with the move to more efficient digital
provision of services) and the investment in the estate (through better, more
flexible use of buildings). Any deviation from this strategy will require alternative
savings proposals to be identified.
5.2 Risk and Mitigations
5.2.1 The Council makes significant investments in properties across all
localities in the Borders, either through the creation of new assets such
as the Learning Estate or through the Property Maintenance Fund
which ensure that our assets are maintained in a safe and functioning
Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 19

condition. However, the sheer size of our estate means that this
investment is spread too thinly and is not currently enough to sustain
the estate and ensure that it remains fit for purpose. There is a risk
that with the financial constraints and a growing maintenance backlog
that, if we do not address this issue, we will be unable to continue to
maintain our properties and that buildings will close by default.
5.2.2 Without a corporate and partnership-wide approach that engages
effectively with communities we may miss opportunities to think
creatively and identify alternative options for buildings.
5.2.3 There is a risk that any vacated buildings are left empty, unused and
undeveloped. Plans for investment and disinvestment must recognise
the value of properties in terms of the heritage and built environment
in communities. Where, through engagement, a property is identified
as surplus the Council will look at the following options:
 Community Asset Transfer – with appropriate timescales and
support to establish/prove/disprove a viable business case.
 Strategic sales (with planning restrictions where appropriate) in
partnership with SoSE as part of Economic Development/Town
Centre Regeneration.
 Quick sales for non-strategic assets and where no interest exists in
terms of Community Asset Transfer
5.3

Integrated Impact Assessment

As per the Community Empowerment legislation, the proposed Place-Making
engagement approach anticipated above aims to take a co-productive approach to
developing and agreeing proposals and the participation by, and the views of,
communities of place and interest will be a central component. The opportunity to
rethink our estate includes associated opportunities for improving access to
services. Integrated Impact Assessments will be completed as part of the process
of developing new service delivery models.
5.4

Acting Sustainably

The framework seeks to ensure that services and property provision, in future, is
on a more sustainable footing.
5.5

Carbon Management

The Council has recently made challenging commitments to reduce greenhouse
gases to net zero by 2045 at the latest. This relates to national targets which
apply to Live Borders as well as the Council. Our current joint estate, in terms of
both its size and its condition mitigates against these targets and is one of the key
areas where action can be taken to reduce our collective carbon footprint.
5.6

Rural Proofing

The approach set out in this report seeks to ensure that services are maintained or
improved across existing communities through investment in a reduced number of
properties and that, through digital provision, services are accessible to all
regardless of where people live.

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 20

5.7

Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes to be made to either the Scheme of Administration or the
Scheme of Delegation as a result of the proposals contained in this report.
6.

CONSULTATION
6.1

The Executive Director (Finance & Regulatory), the Monitoring Officer/Chief
Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Service Director HR &
Communications, the Clerk to the Council and Corporate Communications
have been consulted and any comments received have been incorporated
into the final report.

Approved by
Name
Clair Hepburn
Title

Signature ……………………………………

Service Director Human Resources

Author(s)
Name

Designation and Contact Number

James Lamb

Portfolio Manager

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. James Lamb can also give
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at James Lamb, Portfolio Manager, jlamb@scotborders.gov.uk

Scottish Borders Council – 17 December 2020 Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

